
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Democratic Services, (01254) 380116/380136/380184 
Email:  memberservices@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Tuesday, 4 January 2022 

Page 1 of 3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cabinet 
 
Wednesday, 12 January 2022 at 3.00 pm, 
Saturn Suite, The Globe Centre, St James Square, Accrington, BB5 0RE 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Paul Cox, Loraine Cox, Munsif Dad BEM JP and Joyce Plummer 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

PART A: PROCEDURAL AND INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Minutes of Cabinet  (Pages 5 - 16) 
 
To approve the Minutes of the last meeting of Cabinet held on 8th December 2021. 
 

4.   Urgent Decisions Taken  (Pages 17 - 22) 
 
In accordance with Executive Procedure Rule B16(c), to receive a report on decisions 
taken under urgency procedures.  The following decisions are attached:- 
 

No. Decision Heading Portfolio Holder Date of Approval 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

(a) Huncoat Garden Village:  
Brownfield and Land 
Infrastructure Fund 

Cllr Loraine Cox 23rd December 2021 

 

PART B: PORTFOLIO ITEMS 
 

5.   Reports of Cabinet Members   
 
To receive verbal reports from each of the Portfolio Holders, as appropriate. 
 

Leader of the Council (Councillor Miles Parkinson) 
 

6.   Council Tax Base - 2022-2023  (Pages 23 - 30) 
 
Report attached. 
 

Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) 
 

7.   Prudential Indicators Monitoring and Treasury Management Strategy Update  
(Pages 31 - 36) 
 
Report attached. 
 

8.   Capital Spend Report 2021/22  (Pages 37 - 44) 
 
Report attached. 
 

PART C: EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

9.   Exclusion of the Public   
 
Recommended  That, in accordance with Regulation 4(2)(b) of the Local 

Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access 
to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the public be 
excluded from the meeting during the following items, when 
it is likely, in view of the nature of the proceedings that there 
will otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within the 
Paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 specified at the items. 

 
Details of any representations received by the Executive about why the following 
report should be considered in public – none received. 
 
Statement in response to any representations – not required. 
 

10.   Urgent Decisions Taken  (Pages 45 - 54) 
 
Exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 - Relating to the financial or business affairs 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
In accordance with Executive Procedure Rule B16(c), to receive a report on decisions 
taken under urgency procedures.  The following decisions are attached:- 
 

No. Decision Heading Portfolio Holder Date of Approval 
 

(a) Procurement of Software 
Services for Planning 
Applications Online 

Cllr Miles Parkinson 
OBE 
 

1st December 2021 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 8th December, 2021 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE (in the Chair), Councillors Paul Cox (Vice 

Chair), Loraine Cox, Munsif Dad BEM JP and Joyce Plummer 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Michael Miller and Jenny Molineux 
 

 
190 Apologies for Absence 

 
There were no apologies for absence submitted on this occasion. 
 

191 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations at this point during the 
meeting.  (NB. Councillor Munsif Dad BEM JP made a declaration prior to the discussion 
reported at Minute 197 below). 
 

192 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 20th October 2021 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a 

correct record. 
 

193 Reports of Cabinet Members 
 
Councillor Paul Cox, Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Environmental 
Services, reported on a record breaking year for the Green Flag Awards.  Nine of 
Hyndburn’s parks and open spaces now boasted the Green Flag Award, which recognised 
the quality work undertaken.  In addition, at the recent 25th Annual Green Flag Awards 
ceremony, held on-line, Hyndburn had been successful in winning 2 categories: 
 

 Gordon Mason was victorious as one of four finalists for Employee of the Year 

award.  He had been a crucial part of Hyndburn Council’s Parks Team for almost 50 

years. 

 

 Ann Warrington was one of 15 finalists for the Volunteer of the Year award.  Ann 

had taken on the creation and development of the Friends of Rhyddings Park, 

Oswaldtwistle. 

 
The Cabinet’s thanks was recorded to the above individuals and to all of the other 
employees and volunteers whose hard work had helped to make the Council’s parks, 
cemeteries and open spaces so exceptional.  The Leader noted that these achievements 
were a credit to all involved. 
 
Resolved (1) The Cabinet notes the Borough’s successes in 

relation to the Green Flag Awards 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

(2) That the Democratic Services Manager be requested 
to draft a letter on behalf of the Leader of the 
Council, Cabinet and Leader of the Opposition to 
thank the above-mentioned award winners for their 
hard work. 

 
194 Rent Concession for the Indoor Market Hall Traders 

 
Councillor Paul Cox, Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Environmental 
Services, provided a report asking the Cabinet to consider further support for the indoor 
Market Hall traders by extending the current period of rent concessions, due to the 
unprecedented pressures brought about by the Coronavirus pandemic and reduction in 
footfall across local high streets. 
 
Councillor P Cox provided an introduction to the report as follows.  The Council 
acknowledged the difficulties faced by traders within the indoor Market Hall and understood 
the best way to help them throughout this period.  Previously, a 22.5% rent concession had 
been agreed at the Cabinet meeting in July 2021, on top of a 30% rent concession agreed 
at its meeting in November 2019,  However, footfall remained low on the ground floor and 
stalls were struggling.  There were some positive signs, as there was now a waiting list for 
the first floor balcony outlets and high occupancy levels of the outdoor stalls.  Nowhere else 
in the North West currently offered the level of support provided by Hyndburn Borough 
Council, which recognised the importance of this amenity to the Town Centre’s 
redevelopment. 
 
Councillor Michael Miller, Joint Deputy Leader of the Opposition, asked whether it might be 
more prudent to extend the concessions for, say, six months only and then review the 
measures.  The impacts of COVID were not expected to be permanent and ultimately the 
Market Hall needed to be self-sustaining financially.  There was a suggestion that a 3 year 
business plan should be developed, but that repeatedly extending concessions was not the 
right approach.  He queried whether this had led to increased take up of stalls. 
 
Councillor P Cox responded that the measures were intended to show a commitment to 
supporting existing traders, to acknowledge that they were included in the Council’s future 
plans and to provide them with a degree of financial certainty.  Use of the outdoor market 
pavilions had increased and the first floor balcony was doing well.  Rental values were 
thought to be realistic given the circumstances.  Concessions had brought new traders in 
and there remained a potential for small businesses on the balcony to grow and move 
downstairs. 
 
The Leader remarked that the Market Hall was a commercial venture, but that it was also 
central to the emerging Town Centre Investment Plan.  Overall recovery might take several 
years, but there were quick gains to be made by improving footfall in the Market Hall.  A 
recent survey had showed a disappointing level of patronage by local residents.  However, 
if the Market Hall adapted to provide a goods which could not be purchased easily on-line, it 
could ‘wash its face’.  The stall rental values were set based on demand, taking into 
account an oversupply of retail units in Accrington and the rent currently set for shops in the 
area.  Accordingly, the concessions were thought to be appropriate at this time. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Previous reports to Cabinet had highlighted the downturn in trading on high streets across 
the country, with Accrington Town Centre and the Market Hall not immune to this.  

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
3 

However, as restrictions for Covid-19 had been relaxed and more residents were starting to 
return to the high street, there were some positive signs to improved trading, but this was 
not yet back to pre-Covid levels.  
 
Occupancy rates within the external pavilions for October 2021, showed of those Peel 
Street Kiosks available for rent, all were leased.  In addition, the open stalls on the 
Thursday and Sunday market days were now regularly achieving close to 100% occupancy 
level.  However, levels for the Tuesday, Friday and Saturday market days were 
substantially lower, ranging from 24% to 34%.  
 
The balcony units inside the Market Hall were performing well, with 100% of those available 
for rent now occupied.  In fact, these smaller units with the ‘all inclusive’ monthly rents were 
proving so popular, the market team was looking into the feasibility of reducing / relocating 
some facilities downstairs, where only around 60% of available units/stalls were leased out 
and thereby offering a further income opportunity.  
 
The Council wishing to show support for the indoor Market Hall traders, had approved the 
following rent/service charge concessions over the past 3 years.  However, without any 
further extensions, the 22.5% rent concession would expire at the end of December 2021, 
followed by the 30% rent concession at the end of December 2022. 
 

 a 50% concession on rents and service charges for two months in 2018; 

 a permanent reduction in rents of 13.4% in 2019; 

 a 30% concession on rents for a period of three years in 2020; 

 a 22.5% concession on rents for twelve months in 2020; and 

 an extension to the 22.5% concession on rents for a further six months in 2021.  

 
No concessions were currently proposed in the level of service charges for the Market Hall 
traders, as these costs had to be passed on to the users.  However, the level of rent was 
set by the Council and the traders had continued to express views that they were only able 
to continue given the rent concessions currently in place.  
 
Whilst there seemed to be a ‘potential’ loss of income from applying rent concessions, this 
assumed traders were able and willing to pay the higher level of rent.  Where rents were too 
high and not in line with similar properties across the wider town centre, there was a risk 
that many would simply leave the Market Hall, meaning all their rental income would be 
lost.  
 
If approved, the concession being proposed to the Market Hall traders would be as per 
previous agreements:  
 

 that traders continue to make all monthly rent or other payments via Direct Debit 

and adhere to the Council’s Market Regulations; 

 where a current trader was in rent arrears, this concession would not be applied to 

the arrears and if applicable, any credits due would be used to reduce the 

outstanding debt; and 

 where a trader was up to date and, if applicable, any credits would be returned in 

full. 

 
Traders from the balcony units or outside Peel Street Kiosks would not be eligible for the 
proposed rent concession. 
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
4 

 
The Council could let the current rent concessions expire.  However, this had been rejected 
because the indoor Market Hall traders continued to raise concerns around high rents and 
trading viability.  Given the reality that footfall levels and spending remained below pre-
COVID levels, if the concessions did not remain, there was a high probability that traders 
would seek other properties within the town centre that were offering lower rental deals. 
 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet notes the report and the work 

undertaken by the Markets Team in continuing to 
implement improvements within the Market Hall, 
which contributes to the retention of existing traders 
and attracting new traders but also the various 
promotions to drive up customer footfall. 

 
(2) That Cabinet approves an extension of the 22.5% 

rent concession agreed at its meeting in July 2021, 
from 1st January 2022 until 31st March 2023. 

 
(3) That Cabinet approves an extension of the three 

year 30% rent concession agreed at its meeting in 
November 2019, for a further 3 months from 1st 
January 2023 until 31st March 2023. 

 
(4) That Cabinet notes that the rent concessions will 

reduce potential income levels within this and the 
next financial year and it is unlikely any efficiency or 
other savings will offset this. 

 
195 Suicide Prevention Scrutiny Panel Report 

 
Members considered a report of Councillor Jenny Molineux, Chair of the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The subject matter and recommendations 
fell within the remit of the Councillor Loraine Cox, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and 
Wellbeing. 
 
Councillor Molineux provided a brief introduction to the report as follows: 
 
The Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee had received a report 
and presentation from Lancashire County Council Public Health at its meeting on 8th July 
2021.  The report had highlighted concerns that Real Time Surveillance data of suspected 
suicide rates in Hyndburn had increased.  
 
Each and every suicide was a tragedy, which caused devastating and permanent impacts 
on families, friends and broader communities.  It was estimated that annually 800,000 
people across the world died by suicide, with 5,316 people sadly taking their life in England 
in 2019.  It was of the utmost importance that the Council did all it could to reduce this 
number as far as possible, so that fewer people died by suicide.  But, it was also of the 
utmost importance that when, tragically, somebody did end their life by suicide their family, 
friends and broader community who had been bereaved received whatever support they 
needed in place to manage their loss. 
 
Lancashire County Council Public Health were working in partnership with the Integrated 
Care System to reduce the number of suicides in Lancashire, and had presented their 
Action Plan for the first wave of intervention to the Scrutiny Committee, with a focus on 
prevention. 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
5 

 
The Committee had resolved to establish a Scrutiny Panel to carry out a light touch review, 
specifically focussed on: 
 

 What did Hyndburn Borough Council already do to support suicide prevention; and 

 What more could Hyndburn Borough Council do as part of its core business to 

support suicide prevention. 

 
Councillor Loraine Cox reiterated that each suicide was a tragedy, not only to the individual 
but also to their family, friends and the broader community.  The Council should do all that 
was possible to reduce the number of attempts and deaths and to support other persons 
affected.  She encouraged Members to support the Scrutiny Committee’s 
recommendations. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The report set out the detailed reasons for the recommendation and included information on 
the following: 
 

 Background and context; 

 Suicides in Lancashire – National data reporting; 

 Hyndburn Borough Council – current interventions: 

o Employee Wellbeing; 

o Staff training; 

o Hyndburn Hub; 

o Policy; 

o Marketing and Communications; 

o Leisure; 

o High risk locations; 

o Other matters; and 

 Hyndburn Borough Council – potential further interventions. 

 
A detailed Mental Health and Suicide Prevention Action Plan was also appended to the 
report. 
 
Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The Council could choose not to sign up to the Mental Health Challenge, Appoint a Member 
Champion or adopt a Mental Health and Suicide Action Plan.  This was rejected as real 
time surveillance showed Hyndburn was a growing area of concern for suicides. 
 
Resolved - That Cabinet resolves: 

 
(1) To sign up to the Mental Health Challenge for 

Local Authorities. 
 
(2) To appoint an elected member as the Council’s 

‘Mental Health Champion’. 
 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
6 

(3) To identify a member of staff within the Council 
to act as ‘Lead Officer’ for mental health and 
wellbeing. 

 
(4) To implement a Mental Health and Suicide 

Prevention Action Plan, as detailed in 
Appendix 1. 

 
(5) To report back to the Communities and 

Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
annually with progress on the 
recommendations and Action Plan. 

 
196 Financial Position Report - October 2021- Report for the Year Ending 31st March 

2022 
 
Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder for Resources, provided a report on the 
Financial Position as at October 2021 and the financial forecast outturn position for the 
Accounting Year 2021/22. 
 
Councillor Plummer highlighted the following issues in connection with the report:- 
 
The Council’s overall financial position continued to improve as the year progressed and it  
was now able to forecast that an underspend of around £191,000 was likely to occur by the 
year end. 
 
The Council had secured additional funding to help it with the key work it was doing on 
COVID 19 and this had allowed a more robust forecast of the overall position to be made.  
The authority should now be able to cope over the second half of the year with its extra 
COVID activities without it having a negative impact on overall finances, if rates of infection 
and demand on services largely stayed as currently imagined. 
 
However, the threat from COVID remained and if infection levels increased over the winter 
it might be necessary for the Council to increase its activity in combatting the spread of the 
pandemic.  This would lead to additional spending beyond the forecasts made in this report 
and the predicted underspend would dwindle or disappear in those circumstances. 
 
The Council would continue to closely monitor the changing impact of COVID across 
Hyndburn and map its impact on spending, so that any early signs of costs increasing could 
be identified. 
 
Elsewhere on the core budget of the Council, the authority continued to see pressures on 
income levels in Corporate Property and at the Market Hall as the Council contended with a 
changed commercial and retail letting environment, but the adverse variances occurring 
here were offset by savings in other areas of the Council and the position remained positive 
overall. 
 
Councillor Michael Miller thanked the Finance Team for their hard work and prudent 
financial management.  He enquired about the £190k additional staffing costs in 
Regeneration and Property Services and asked whether the expenditure was for core staff 
or COVID support staff.  Mark Hoyle, Head of Regeneration and Housing, responded that 
these costs were largely in respect of core staff, due to using agency staff to fill key senior 
posts.  However, the overspend should come to an end next year. 
 
Approval of the report was not a key decision. 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
7 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
The spend for the first 7 months of the financial year to the end of October 2021 was 
£7,558,000 compared to a Budget of £8,396,000 giving a positive variance of £838,000 
over the first 7 months of the year. 
 
The current forecast spend to the end of the financial year in March 2022 was £11,036,000 
compared to a Budget of £11,227,000.  This forecast produced a positive variance of 
£191,000 by the end of the financial year. 
 
The Council had received additional financial support from Lancashire County Council 
(LCC) to meet the cost of continuing COVID 19 pressures over the second half of the year.  
This would allow the Council to meet its current forecast spend in relation to COVID 19 
activities for the remainder of the year. 
 
At this moment in time, it was unclear whether extra spending would be required over and 
above that currently predicted, as it remained uncertain as to whether infection rates would 
surge once again as we entered the winter period.  If the infection figures increased it was 
likely that the Council would need to incur additional expenditure to further assist the local 
community to meet the challenges presented.  If this extra activity was not funded by 
Central Government, the additional cost would fall on the Council and this would have an 
adverse impact on the current forecast outturn position. 
 
The Budget forecast included large elements of expenditure and funding in connection with 
COVID 19.  As this was a new area of budget management, controls and management of 
the expenditure and income was not at the same high standard as for the Council’s normal 
budget expenditure.  There was therefore a higher degree of risk around these figures in 
the forecasts made.  Accountancy staff and Management were working to improve the 
thoroughness and accuracy of these figures. 
 
The report included more detailed commentary about expenditure in the following service 
areas:- 
 

 Environmental Services; 

 Culture and Leisure Services; 

 Planning and Transportation; 

 Regeneration and Property Services; 

 Policy and Corporate Governance; and 

 Non-service Items. 

 
The additional funding of £581,000 requested by the Council from Lancashire County 
Council to support its on-going work around COVID 19, had reduced the risk of an 
overspend this year and if COVID 19 activity largely remained as currently forecast, the 
Council should have sufficient funds to meet the known costs it expected to incur at this 
time. 
 

There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons 

 
Resolved - That Cabinet notes the report on the financial 

position as at October 2021 and asks Corporate 
Management Team to continue to reduce costs and 
increase income over the remaining months of the 
financial year. 

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
8 

 
Councillor Munsif Dad BEM JP declared a personal interest in the following Item on the 
Hyndburn Leisure Transformation project, in view of his role as member of the Board of 
Trustees of Hyndburn Leisure. 
 

197 Hyndburn Leisure Transformation - Investing in the Health of Hyndburn 
 
Members considered an update report of Councillor Miles Parkinson OBE, Leader of the 
Council, on the Hyndburn Leisure Transformation project. 
 
The Leader outlined the key features of the report as follows 
 
Following a previous report to Full Council on 19th November 2020 and to Cabinet on 10th 
February 2021 and 14th July 2021, a report had been completed, providing Cabinet with 
Sport England’s Strategic Outcomes Planning Guidance (SOPR) document. 
 
This strategic document, developed by Sport England was required to be signed off by 
them, if Capital Investment was being sought by the Authority towards its future capital 
investment projects.  External consultants had inputted into this document, with supporting 
information, evidence, and data from various sources including Sports England’s Project 
Management and Design and Cost Consultants for Major Capital Investment. 
 
The purpose of the SOPR was to provide the Council with service and facility interventions 
for delivering and facilitating community leisure and wellbeing in the Borough that met the 
needs of the local population.  It was based on a well evidenced and researched review of 
provision now and into the future and included clear recommendations providing a delivery 
framework and action plans. 
 
The intention was to develop high quality sport and leisure provision within the Borough.  
Poor health was an issue for many residents.  The Borough’s existing indoor and outdoor 
sports facilities were aging and needed investment.  The Council was committed to 
supporting this and would take a strategic approach.  There was a need to understand 
where best to target resources.  A Local Vision had been developed in collaboration with a 
wide range of stakeholders, which aimed to: 
 

 boost accessibility; 

 promote an active environment; and 

 be sustainable. 

 
Progress against Phase 1 of the project had provided the Council with the rationale for 
improving health and wellbeing based on strong evidence.  Some clear recommendations 
had emerged and a delivery framework and action pan had been produced.  Key projects 
included: 
 

 Refurbishment of Hyndburn Leisure Centre; 

 Replacement of Mercer Hall and possible relocation of facilities to Wilsons Playing 

Fields; and 

 Replacement of the pavilion at Wilsons Playing Fields. 

 
The Mercer Hall facilities could not be replaced like for like at the same location due to the 
constrained site and Wilson’s Playing Fields potentially offered the most suitable alternative 
location, which would include a new build. 
 

Page 12



 
 
 

 

 
9 

The timescales for subsequent Royal Institute of British Architects (RIBA) work stages were 
outlined. 
 
Regarding leisure provision generally, work was already on-going in relation to the 
decarbonisation project at Hyndburn Sports Centre.  In addition, grant funding had been 
obtained by both Hyndburn Leisure and Clayton Amateur Boxing Club for Clayton Civic 
Hall.  In total over £265k would be invested at Clayton Civic Hall over the next six months.  
The Council had been invited to submit a combined Expression of Interest (EOI) to Sport 
England’s Strategic Facilities Fund for £2 million, comprising £1.5M for a new facility to 
replace Mercer Hall Leisure Centre and £0.5M for the Hyndburn Leisure Centre 
refurbishment.  Hyndburn Leisure had also entered into a partnership with Accrington 
Academy for a joint membership scheme.  Great Harwood Otters and other schools were 
already making use of the swimming facilities at the Academy. 
 
Further reports would be provided as the various projects progressed. 
 
Councillor Michael Miller reported that he was aware of a Freedom of Information request 
about Mercer Hall which queried whether essential maintenance had been carried out 
under the terms of the lease to Hyndburn Leisure and whether lack of repairs had led to the 
current poor state of the building.  Use of numerous Council owned buildings had been 
offered on a long term lease, but ultimately the properties could return to the Council.  
Recently two properties operated by charity Mercer 1842 had been returned to the 
Council’s control.  He asked if officers monitored compliance with the maintenance clauses 
in the property leases.  The Leader responded that compliance with the leases was a legal 
issue.  However, in most cases the buildings had come back to the Council’s control in a 
better condition than when originally transferred, because they had been brought back into 
regular use.  In respect of Mercer Hall, the issue was not about maintenance, but about the 
building no longer being fit for purpose as a modern leisure facility. 
 
Councillor Miller also queried the decision to relocate facilities from Mercer Hall to Wilsons 
Playing Fields and asked if a more local site in Great Harwood could be identified.  The 
Leader reiterated that the final decision on this had not yet been taken, but relocation was 
currently the preferred option.  Other suggestions for potential sites were being received, 
but these were not without issues.  The Wilsons Playing Fields facility was very close to a 
large area of Great Harwood and had the advantage of being a prime site for a much wider 
leisure offer.  He understood the sentimental views about Mercer Hall posted on social 
media, but the facility would have to be completely rebuilt, with only the façade retained, to 
bring it up to modern leisure usage standards.  Councillor Miller acknowledged this rational 
and asked that the case for replacement be explained carefully to residents.  The Leader 
indicated that more information would be available about options in the report at the next 
stage. 
 
Approval of the report was not a key decision. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
Poor health and well-being in Hyndburn was a major issue, highlighted during the current 
Covid-19 Pandemic and the Council needed to maintain and improve the health and 
wellbeing offer to the local community if it was to challenge the current position. 
 
Whatever your age, there was strong scientific evidence that being physically active could 
help residents to lead a healthier and happier life. 
 
People who maintained regular activity had a lower risk of many chronic diseases, such as 
heart disease, type 2 diabetes, stroke and some cancers.  Research showed that physical 

Page 13



 
 
 

 

 
10 

activity could also boost self-esteem, mood, sleep quality and energy, as well as reducing 
the risk of stress, depression, dementia and Alzheimer’s disease. 
 
Investing in leisure facilities, pitches, and parks could play a key role in reducing obesity; 
ensuring a healthier, more active and productive nation in the future.  It could also make a 
significant contribution towards reducing the local carbon footprint. 
 
The current indoor and outdoor sport and leisure facilities in Hyndburn were ageing and 
required significant levels of investment to maintain the current service offer.  The work of 
the Council and Leisure Trust over the past three years had aimed to understand the 
potential to enhance the existing leisure offer to maximise positive outcomes for the local 
community. 
 
The Council was committed to strengthening leisure provision across Hyndburn and was 
taking a strategic approach to identify the most effective investment plan, to benefit the 
local community. 
 
In September 2021, Swim England had published the report, A Decade In Decline: The 
Future of Swimming Pools In England.  It estimated that before the end of the decade the 
number of pools would have reduced from 4,336 to around 2,468, if sufficient intervention 
was not made.  That equated to almost a quarter of local authorities in England having a 
deficit of at least one average-sized pool. 
 
A full strategic assessment and report for the provision of swimming pools across the 
Hyndburn Borough Council area had been carried out.  The findings were based on Sport 
England’s Facilities Planning Model (FPM) data from Sport England’s national assessment 
of swimming pools.  This report identified that a new public swimming pool to replace the 
ageing Mercer Hall Leisure Centre pool site should be a 25m x 4 lane pool, which would 
increase the total supply of water space in the Borough.  
 
The Hyndburn Leisure Transformation project sought to secure investment which would 
extend and enhance sport, leisure and wellbeing facilities in the Borough, providing high 
quality opportunities for decades to come. 
 
The report included further details on the findings and recommendations from the Strategic 
Outcomes Planning Report.  It also documented ongoing progress against Phase 1 of the 
Leisure Transformation plans. 
 

There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons 

 
Resolved (1) That Cabinet approves the Strategic Outcomes 

Planning Guidance (SOPG) document as its final 
version and submission to Sport England. 

 
(2) Cabinet supports the three recommended leisure 

capital projects as priorities for investment - Mercer 
Hall Leisure Centre replacement/major 
refurbishment, Hyndburn Leisure Centre 
refurbishment and Wilson Playing Fields Pavilion 
replacement. 

 
(3) Cabinet approves that the priority project is the 

replacement/major refurbishment of the Mercer Hall 
Leisure Centre site as soon as practicably possible. 

 

Page 14



 
 
 

 

 
11 

(4) Following advice given by Sport England and 
recommendations from the Strategic Outcomes 
Planning Guidance report, Cabinet approves that 
RIBA Stage 1 work is undertaken at this time for the 
Mercer Hall Leisure Centre site, as set out in 
Paragraph 4.7 of the report. 

 
198 Exclusion of the Public 

 
Resolved - That, in accordance with Regulation 4(2)(b) of the 

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was 
likely, in view of the nature of the proceedings that 
there would otherwise be disclosure of exempt 
information within the Paragraph at Schedule 12A of 
the Act specified at the item. 

 
199 Disposal of Land at Back Lane, Baxenden 

 
In accordance with Regulation 5(6)(a) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, approval was given by 
Councillor Jenny Molineux, Chair of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, to the following decision being made by Cabinet on 8th December 2021, in 
private, on the grounds that the decision was urgent and could not reasonably be deferred.  
The relevant notice had been published on 30th November 2021. 
 
Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
Councillor Loraine Cox, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Wellbeing, provided a report 
seeking the Cabinet’s approval to the disposal of 0.49 acres of land at Back Lane, 
Baxenden. 
 
Approval of the report was not a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 
 
Resolved - That the recommendations as set out in the exempt 

report be approved. 
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 

Page 15



 
 
 

 

 
12 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 16



1 of 2 

HYNDBURN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

APPROVAL FOR URGENT EXECUTIVE (CABINET) DECISION 
 

(Executive Procedure Rule B16) 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary and Approvals 
  

1. Title of Report   
 

Huncoat Garden Village:  Brownfield and Land Infrastructure Fund 
                                                                        
 

2. Report Author   
 

Mark Hoyle, Head of Regeneration and Housing 
 

3. Purpose of Report  
 
To seek approval to waive the Council’s Contracts Procedure Rules for the appointment 
of a suitably experienced consultant to support the Council’s bid to gap fund remediation 
and infrastructure costs which are required to help support the delivery of Huncoat 
Garden Village. 

 
4. Decision requested 

 
Cabinet are invited to: 
 
4.1  Agrees to waive the Contract Procedure Rules for the reasons set out in paragraphs 
3.5 and 4.1 of the attached Cabinet report and to grant delegated authority to the Head 
of Regeneration and Housing in consultation with the Executive Director (Legal and 
Democratic Services) to agree the terms of appointment and contracts. 
 

 
5. Reason for Urgency 

 
Work on preparing the Brownfield and Land Infrastructure Fund Business Case 
submission needs to begin urgently in order to meet the March / April 2022 timeline, and 
therefore the next available Cabinet date of the 12th January 2022 would be too late. 

 
6. Approvals of Members and Officers 

 

Designation Signature to give Approval 

Elected Members  
 

Leader of the Council Miles Parkinson (by e-mail 20.12.21) 

 

Deputy Leader of the Council Paul Cox (by e-mail 23.12.21) 

 

Portfolio Holder Loraine Cox (by e-mail 20.12.21) 

 

Mayor (to agree to exempt from call-in) 

 

Kath Pratt (by e-mail 20.12.21) 

 

Officers  Page 17

Agenda Item 4.



2 of 2 

 

Chief Executive  

 

David Welsby (by e-mail 20.12.21) 

Deputy Chief Executive (only in the 
absence of the Chief Executive or if the 
Chief Executive is the decision taker) 

 

N/A 

Monitoring Officer (only in the absence of 
the Chief Executive and Deputy Chief 
Executive or if one is absent and the 
other is the decision taker) 

 

N/A 

Chief Officer/Head of Service 

 

Mark Hoyle (by e-mail 23.12.21) 

 
 
7. Date of Decision (when finally approved):  23rd December 2021 

Page 18



Page 1 of 4 
 

REPORT TO: Cabinet 

DATE: 12 January 2022 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Loraine Cox - Housing and Regeneration 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Hoyle, Head of Regeneration and Housing 

TITLE OF REPORT: Huncoat Garden Village:  Brownfield and Land 
Infrastructure Fund 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To seek approval to waive the Council’s Contracts Procedure Rules for the appointment of a 

suitably experienced consultant to support the Council’s bid to gap fund remediation and 
infrastructure costs which are required to help support the delivery of Huncoat Garden Village. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
 I recommend that Cabinet: 
 
2.1 Agrees to waive the Contract Procedure Rules for the reasons set out in paragraphs 3.5 and 

4.1 of the report and grants delegated authority to the Head of Regeneration and Housing in 
consultation with the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic Services) to agree the terms of 
appointment and contracts. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Housing growth at Huncoat is a top priority within the Council’s Corporate Strategy (2018-23) 

and on the 20th of October 2021 Cabinet approved the Huncoat Garden Village Masterplan 
Framework (the Masterplan), which promotes the development of circa 1,500 new homes over 
the next 10-15 years.  The Masterplan is supported by a high-level delivery plan which shows 
that viability is marginal due a combination of very high brownfield abnormal costs and new 
infrastructure costs, including a new stretch of road linking Huncoat Garden Village with the 
A56. 

 
3.2 Huncoat Garden Village is also a high priority for Homes England, the Government’s non-

departmental housing agency, and is working directly with the Council to support the delivery 
of 1,500 new homes at Huncoat.  Work has commenced on preparing a £25 million bid from 
Homes England’s Brownfield and Infrastructure Fund.  The application needs to follow the 
Government’s Green book approach for public sector funding which requires a comprehensive 

Page 19



Page 2 of 4 
 

business case and delivery programme.  Additional capacity plus external expertise is required 
to support the business case preparation, which will include: 

 
 Delivery Strategy - this will take the existing Masterplan high level business plan to the 

required level of detail including a more refined understanding of costs (with a focus on 
abnormal and infrastructure costs), delivery programme, funding strategy, land assembly and 
planning strategy.  The purpose is to ensure all base information and key strategy is in place to 
provide delivery confidence. 

 
 Financial and Economic Modelling – this will develop the financial and economic evidence.  

The Economic Model will include the preparation of a Benefit Cost Ratio including the 
demonstration of maximum economic benefits with appropriate levels of confidence. 

 
 Business Case Formalisation – this will pull together the work undertaken (Masterplan plus 

the above) to prepare the £25 million funding submission to Homes England.   
 
 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)/ Heads of Terms – A memorandum of 

understanding is an agreement between two or more parties outlined in a formal document. It 
is not legally binding but signals the willingness of the parties to move forward with a contract. 
The MOU can be seen as the starting point for negotiations as it defines the scope and 
purpose of the talks.  At Huncoat Garden Village this is required for landowners to establish 
collaboration on land release and delivery arrangements including land values.  The MOU will 
therefore be the first step in a process for the relevant Huncoat landowners agreeing to work 
collaboratively in releasing their land for residential development.  

 
3.3 Homes England has allocated £115,000 to support the above work.  The total cost of the work 

is £155,000 and therefore Hyndburn need to contribute £40,000 to makeup the shortfall and to 
allow the work to proceed without any delay bearing in mind that the Business Case 
submission needs to be made by the end of March / beginning of April 2022.  The £40,000 
budget will be met from existing budgets. 

 
3.4 Homes England has appointed Avison Young to carry out the majority of the above work from 

its Technical and Professional Framework consultancy list.  Avison Young were sub-
contractors to Arcadis on the Masterplan and pulled together and wrote the high-level delivery 
strategy element of the Masterplan and therefore have a very good knowledge and 
understanding of the Masterplan, especially the delivery strategy.  In the circumstances Avison 
Young are the most appropriate commercial / development consultants for the Council to 
appoint to carry out some of the Council’s element of the commission.   

 
3.5 Therefore, Cabinet are asked to waive Contract Procedure Rules to appoint Avison Young for 

the economic modelling element of the work on the basis of Homes England’s appointment, 
who have procured Avison Young through their Consultancy Framework and because of their 
existing work and knowledge of the project. In addition, the Council will benefit from the same 
rates as Homes England has through its framework, which demonstrates best value. 

 
3.6 The Business Case work programme has been broken down into a number of elements to 

enable both Homes England and the Council to appoint Avison Young directly.  The cost to 
employ Avison Young to prepare the Economic Modelling (see “3.2” above) is £25,000.  The 
remaining balance of £15,000 will be used to appoint external solicitors to prepare the 
Memorandum of Understanding / Heads of Terms (see “3.2” above), and this part of the work 
will be procured using the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. 

 
 

Page 20



Page 3 of 4 
 

4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Using the Council’s Contract Procurement Rules were considered but rejected due to: 
 

 The urgent need to proceed with putting the business case together 

 Homes England have appointed Avison Young from their Technical and Professional 
Framework following a competitive process and it means the Council’s commission will be 
complementary and consistent to Homes England’s appointment 

 In addition, the Council are benefitting from the same rates as Homes England under its 
framework demonstrating best value 

 Avison Young prepared the high-level Delivery Strategy for the Masterplan and therefore 
are best placed to work on developing the Business Case. 

 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Homes England have been consulted and would welcome the Council’s £40,000 contribution, 

acknowledging it is a very positive sign of the Council’s support and commitment to supporting 
the delivery of Huncoat Garden Village.  At the same time Homes England are encouraging the 
Council to work collaboratively, and therefore has encouraged the Council to appoint Avison 
Young for the economic modelling element of the commission. 

 
5.2 The Chief Executive, Council Leader, Portfolio Holder and Portfolio Holder for Resources have 

been consulted. 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including any 
future financial commitments for the 
Council) 
 

A £40,000 budget will be allocated from existing 
budgets. 
 

Legal and human rights implications 
 

The Council should procure services unless 
approval is given to waive the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules.  The reasons for waiving the 
Contract Procedure Rules are set out in 
paragraphs 3.5 and 4.2 of the report. 
 
Contracts will be entered into for each of the two 
procurements referred to in the report. 
 
The Council is not expected to be a party to the 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

Assessment of risk 
 

By not supporting the report’s recommendations 
would lead to delays and therefore put the 
Council’s submission for £25 million infrastructure 
funding at risk. 
 
The risk associated with the appointments will be 
mitigated by having appropriate contracts in 
place. 
 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy decisions 

There are no direct equality and diversity 
implications arising directly from this report. 

Page 21

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Page 4 of 4 
 

and should be attached as an appendix 
to the report.  
 

 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Copies of documents included in this list must be open to inspection and, in the case of 
 reports to Cabinet, must be published on the website.  
 

Previous reports to Cabinet on the 4th January 2017, the 18th July 2018, the 15th January 2020 
and the 20th of October 2021. 

 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 

Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information Act 
2000. 

 

Page 22



REPORT TO: Cabinet 

DATE: 12 January 2022 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Miles Parkinson, Leader 

REPORT AUTHOR: Joe McIntyre – Deputy Chief Executive 

 

TITLE OF REPORT: Council Tax Base – 2022-2023 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform Members of the Council Tax Base for the financial year 2022-2023. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 Cabinet approves the report and is recommended to pass the following resolution: 
  

“That in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 
2012, the amount 21,050”. 
 
“That in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 
2012, the amount calculated by the Council for its Council Tax Base for the parish of 
Altham for the financial year 2022-2023 shall be 310. 

 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 In accordance with Section 35 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council 

is required to formally determine the Council Tax Base for 2022-2023 prior to 31st 
January 2022. This allows the Council to notify the major preceptors (Lancashire 
County Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire and Lancashire 
Combined Fire Authority) by the 31st January of the Council Tax Base. 

 
3.2 The requisite calculation (Appendices A and B) has to be carried out in accordance 

with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012. Once 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6.



determined the Council Tax Base cannot be changed and has to be used when the 
Council set their Council Tax for the financial year 2022-2023.  

 
3.3 The calculation of the Tax Base for Hyndburn and Altham for 2022-2023 is attached.  It 

is proposed that the Tax Base for Hyndburn 2022-2023 shall be 21,050. This is an 
increase from last year’s Tax Base of 811 (20,239).  The 2022-2023 Tax Base for 
Altham is 310, this is an increase from last year’s Tax Base of 6 from 304. 

 
The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012 specify 
formulae for calculating the Council Tax Base which must be set between the 1st 
December 2021 and the 31st January 2022. 
 
The Council Tax Base is the measure of the number of chargeable dwellings held on 
the valuation list as at the 13 September 2021 and then adjusted to take account of 
discounts, exemptions, re-bandings and Council Tax Support to arrive at the 
Authority’s Council Tax Band D. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 This is a statutory requirement, therefore no other options can be considered. 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 N/A 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

The Council Tax Base is a factor in the 
determination of the planned level of Council 
Tax Income which will be collectable in the 
next financial year – 2022-2023. 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

The calculation of the Council Tax Base has 
been carried out in accordance with the 
relevant legislation; and is required thereby to 
be approved by Member(s) within the period 
1st December to 31st January proceeding the 
financial year concerned. 
 
The Local Government Act 2003 (s84) 
enables delegation on this matter, so that the 
formal determination of Council Tax base by 
Member(s) does not have to be done by the 
full Council.   
 

Assessment of risk 
 

If the Council Tax Base is not set then the 
Council cannot determine the Council Tax for 
the following financial year. 
 

Page 24



Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

The Customer First Analysis is attached at  
Appendix C 
 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Copies of documents included in this list must be open to inspection and, in the case of 
 reports to Cabinet, must be published on the website.  
 
 
If the report is public, insert the following paragraph. If the report is exempt, contact 
Member Services for advice. 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 
 
  

Page 25

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Page 4 of 7 
 

Appendix A 

 
 
 

HBC Total AA Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Total

1 Total Dwellings on Valuation List at 13/09/2021 0 21874 5707 5648 2759 859 278 173 14 37312

2 Exempt Dwellings 0 596 100 87 33 15 3 4 0 838

3 Disabled reduction 0 53 33 45 28 8 9 7 8 191

Disabled reduction 53 33 45 28 8 9 7 8 0 191

A Adjusted Dwellings 53 21258 5619 5544 2706 845 273 170 6 36474

4 25% Discount 16 10141 1951 1482 565 147 41 29 2 14374

Other Discount 4 730 136 96 74 40 34 32 2 1148

Total Discount 20 10871 2087 1578 639 187 75 61 4 15522

B 25% of Discount 5.00 2717.75 521.75 394.50 159.75 46.75 18.75 15.25 1.00 3880.50

5 Long Term Empty Property Premium 148 12 5 7 4 0 1 0 177

C Net Chargeable Dwellings 48.00 18685.25 5109.25 5154.50 2552.25 802.25 254.25 155.75 5.00 32766.50

Estimated changes from 04/10/2021

6a FYE New Properties (incl Appeals incr) 0 220 136 53 6 0 0 0 0 415

6b Re-occupied properties( former Exempt class C) 0 0

6c Total 0 220 136 53 6 0 0 0 0 415

7a FYE Properties removed from list (incl Appeals) 0 0 6 12 8 6 0 0 0 32

7b FYE Discount (New)(not in 4 above) 0 87 39 2 1 0 0 0 0 129

7c Re-occupied properties Long Term empties(>6mths< 2yrs) 0 22 3 2 2 1 0 0 0 30

7d Re-occupied premium cases  qual for SPD 0 15 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 18

7e Cancelled Premium 0 148 12 5 7 4 0 1 0 177

7f FYE Adjustment to 2 above 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7g Disabled relief adj 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7h Total 0 272 61 22 19 11 0 1 0 386

D Net FYE changes during year 0 -52 75 31 -13 -11 0 -1 0 29

E Net Chargeable Dwellings for year (C+/-D) 48.00 18633.25 5184.25 5185.50 2539.25 791.25 254.25 154.75 5.00 32795.50

8 Local Council Tax support -12.75 -3,575.14 -403.89 -220.56 -50.85 -17.58 -3.27 -4.39 0.00 -4288.43

In Year adjustment -107.25 -12.12 -6.62 -1.53 -0.53 -0.10 -0.13 0.00 -128.27

Total -12.75 -3682.39 -416.01 -227.18 -52.38 -18.11 -3.37 -4.52 0.00 -4416.70

F Net Chargeable Dwellings for Year less CTS 35.25 14950.86 4768.24 4958.32 2486.87 773.14 250.88 150.23 5.00 28378.80

9 Ratio to Band D 5 6 7 8 9 11 13 15 18

10 Band D Equivalents 19.60 9967.20 3708.60 4407.40 2486.90 945.00 362.40 250.40 10.00 22157.50

11 Grand Total 22157.50

12 Collection Rate % 95.00

13 Tax Base 21050

P
age 26



Page 5 of 7 
 

Appendix B 

 

Altham Parish AA Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H Total

1 Total Dwellings on Valuation List at 13/09/2021 0 89 107 126 89 16 4 6 0 437

2 Exempt Dwellings 0 5 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 7

3 Disabled reduction 0 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 4

Disabled reduction 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

A Adjusted Dwellings 0 85 108 122 89 16 4 6 0 430

4 25% Discount 0 32 36 23 19 0 1 1 0 112

Other Discount 0 4 4 2 2 2 0 2 0 16

Total Discount 0 36 40 25 21 2 1 3 0 128

B 25% of Discount 0.00 9.00 10.00 6.25 5.25 0.50 0.25 0.75 0.00 32.00

5 Long Term Empty Property Premium 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

C Net Chargeable Dwellings 0.00 77.00 98.00 115.75 83.75 15.50 3.75 5.25 0.00 399.00

Estimated changes from 04/10/2021

6a FYE New Properties (incl Appeals incr) 0 5 6 4 1 0 0 0 0 16

6b Re-occupied properties( former Exempt class C) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

6c Total 0 5 6 4 1 0 0 0 0 16

7a FYE Properties removed from list (incl Appeals) 0 0 5 6 4 1 0 0 0 16

7b FYE Discount (New)(not in 4 above) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7c Re-occupied properties Long Term empties 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7d Re-occupied premium cases  qual for SPD 0 0.25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.25

7e Cancelled Premium 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

7f FYE Adjustment to 2 above 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7g Disabled relief adj 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7h Total 0 1.25 5 6 4 1 0 0 0 17.25

D Net FYE changes during year 0 3.75 1 -2 -3 -1 0 0 0 -1.25

E Net Chargeable Dwellings for year (C+/-D) 0.00 80.75 99.00 113.75 80.75 14.50 3.75 5.25 0.00 397.75

8 Local Council Tax support 0.00 -8.14 -7.73 -2.61 -2.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -21.45

In Year adjustment 0.00 -0.81 -0.77 -0.26 -0.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -2.15

Total 0 -8.95 -8.50 -2.87 -3.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -23.60

F Net Chargeable Dwellings for Year less CTS 0.00 71.80 90.50 110.88 77.48 14.50 3.75 5.25 0.00 374.16

9 Ratio to Band D 5 6 7 8 9 11 13 15 18

10 Band D Equivalents 0.00 47.90 70.40 98.60 77.50 17.70 5.40 8.80 0.00 326.30

11 Grand Total 326.30

12 Collection Rate % 95.00

13 Tax Base 310

P
age 27



Page 6 of 7 
 

NOTES 
 

1. Line 1 shows the number of dwellings on the Valuation List. 
2. Line 2 shows the number of dwellings in the Valuation List which are considered to be 

exempt or demolished.  Examples of exempt dwellings are those left empty by deceased 
persons or hospital patients, etc.  

3. Line 3 shows dwellings in the Valuation List which will be transferred to a different band 
because of disabled relief. Line A then gives the number of chargeable dwellings in the 
Band prior to discount. 

4. Line 4 shows the dwellings eligible for discounts which are 25% for single person 
properties and 50% for empty dwellings or properties occupied by one or more residents 
who are all to be disregarded. 
Line B gives the dwellings eligible for discount multiplied by 25%. 

5. Line 5 shows the number of long-term empty dwellings (over 2 years) subject to the empty 
property premium 
Line C gives the Net Chargeable Dwellings in the Valuation List after allowing for discount 
and the long-term empty premium 

6. Lines 6 and 7 give the changes which it is estimated will occur during the year after the 4th 
October 2021 

7. Line 6c gives the Full Year’s Equivalent of new properties, re-valued properties and 
cancelled discounts. 

8. Line 7h gives the Full Year’s Equivalents of properties estimated to be removed from the 
Valuation List, re-valued properties and new and cancelled discounts, together with 
properties estimated to be come exempt. 

9. Line D gives the Net Full Year’s Equivalent of changes estimated to take place during the 
year. 

10. Line E gives the Net Chargeable Dwellings for year after taking account of changes 
estimated during this year. 

11. Line 8 is the estimated expenditure and adjustments for the year in respect of Local 
Council Tax Support.  

12. Line F is the Net Chargeable Dwellings for the year after taking into account all 
adjustments including Local Council Tax Support. 

13. Line 9 is the Band D equivalent ratio as set out in The Local Government Finance Act 
1992. 

14. Line 10 is the Band D equivalents. 
15. Line 11 is the total of all Band D equivalents. 
16. Line 12 is the estimate of the ultimate collection rate to collect 95% of the amount due in 

2022/2023. 
Line 13 is the estimated Tax Base for the authority which is the number of equivalent Band D 
properties after allowing for losses on collection.  (This is the figure which will be used as a 
divisor for the net budget after deducing Revenue Support Grant and National Non-Domestic 
Rate Grant, etc.). 
  

Page 28



Page 7 of 7 
 

Appendix C 
Customer First Analysis 

 
Purpose 
What are you trying to achieve with the policy / service / function? 
Who defines and manages it? 
Who do you intend to benefit from it and how? 
What could prevent people from getting the most out of the policy / service / function? 
How will you get your customers involved in the analysis and how will you tell people 
about it? 

 
Comment:  
The Council is required by law to formally determine the Council Tax Base prior 
to the 31st January each financial year in respect of the next financial year.  

 
Evidence 
How will you know if the policy delivers its intended outcome / benefits? 
How satisfied are your customers and how do you know? 
What existing data do you have on the people that use the service and the wider 
population? 
What other information would it be useful to have?  How could you get this? 
Are you breaking down data by equality groups where relevant (such as by gender, 
age, disability, ethnicity, sexual orientation, marital status, religion and belief, 
pregnancy and maternity)? 
Are you using partners, stakeholders, and councillors to get information and feedback? 

 
Comment:  
 This enables the Council to notify the respective preceptors by the 31st January 
as well as being a contributory factor in determining its own level of Council Tax 

 
Impact 
Are some people benefiting more – or less - than others?  If so, why might this be? 
Comment:  N/A 
  
If the evidence suggests that the policy / service / function benefits a particular group – 
or disadvantages another - is there a justifiable reason for this and if so, what is it? 
Is it discriminatory in any way? 
Is there a possible impact in relationships or perceptions between different parts of the 
community? 
What measures can you put in place to reduce disadvantages? 
Do you need to consult further? 
Have you identified any potential improvements to customer service? 
Who should you tell about the outcomes of this analysis? 
Have you built the actions into your Business Plan with a clear timescale? 
When will this assessment need to be repeated? 

 
 Comment:  N/A 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

   

REPORT TO: CABINET  :  COUNCIL 

DATE: 12th January 2022  :  13th January 2022 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: A Martin – Principal Accountant 

D Donlan  – Head of Accountancy Services 

TITLE OF REPORT: Prudential Indicators Monitoring and Treasury 
Management Strategy Update 

EXEMPT REPORT:  No 
 

 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report updates Cabinet on activities in this area since the start of this financial year.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
  
2.1 To note the report. 
 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
 As given in the Background paragraph 4. 
. 

  
4. BACKGROUND 
 
4.1       The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities requires the Council to set 

Prudential Indicators annually for the forthcoming three years to demonstrate that the Council’s 
capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. The Council adopted its 
current prudential indicators at its meeting in February 2021. 

 
4.2        The Prudential Code requires the Council, having agreed at least a minimum number of 

mandatory prudential indicators (including limits and statements), to monitor them - in a locally 
determined format and frequency.  This half-year report to Cabinet complements a more 
regular review by the Deputy Chief Executive. 

 
4.3       The indicators are purely for internal use and not designed to be used as comparators between 

authorities.   If it should be necessary to revise any of the indicators during the year, the 
Deputy Chief Executive will report and advise the Council further.  

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7.



2 
 

4.4       ‘Treasury Management’   relates to the borrowing and cash activities of the authority, and the   
effective management of any associated risks.    On 25th February 2021 in the same report 
referred to at 4.1 above the Council also set out and then approved its current Treasury 
Management Strategy.  This was in accordance with the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance & Accountancy) code of practice on treasury management in public services,  the 
Council having previously adopted, via Cabinet, the then revised code of practice.  Associated 
treasury management Prudential Indicators were included in the February 2021 report. 

 
5. PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS MONITORING  
 
5.1      Table 1 and Table 2 (Appendix 1) show the monitoring information for each of the prudential 

indicators, limits and statements.   They relate to: 

 External debt overall limits – Table 1    

 Affordability   (eg implications for Council Tax) – Table 2 

 Prudence and sustainability  (eg implications for external borrowing) 

 Capital expenditure  

 Other particular indicators for Treasury Management.   
 
6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
 
6.1      Current Treasury Position 
 

 
Portfolio Position 2021/22 
 

Original 
Estimate 
2021/22 

£000 

Projected 
Outturn 
2021/22 

£000 

External Debt 
Debt at 1st April 
Expected Change in Debt 
Other Long Term Liabilities 

 
9,595 

- 
362 

 
9,595 

- 
942 

Gross Debt at 31st March 9,957 10,537 

Capital Financing Requirement  (CFR) 8,866 9,446 

Under / (over) borrowing (1,091) (1,091) 

 
TOTAL INVESTMENTS (other than short-term) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
6.2 Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure that the Council 

operates its activities within well-defined limits. In general the requirement is that CFR exceeds 
gross debt. However in 2021/22 the gross debt will exceed CFR.  This is due to the annual 
payment of Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). Other Liabilities reflect the transfer of contract 
hire leases to balance sheet to comply with IFRS16.  

 
6.3 The requirement to have CFR exceed Gross Debt centres around providing an assurance that 

borrowing is not taking place for Revenue purposes.  However, as the Council is not borrowing 
additional funds at this time, this is not an issue.  

6.4  The current position of the treasury function, and its expected change in the future, introduces 
risk to the Council from an adverse movement in interest rates.  The Prudential Code is 
constructed on the basis of affordability, part of which is related to borrowing costs and 
investment returns.   

Page 32



3 
 

 
6.5 The Capital Programme 2021/22 will be funded by the use of Government Grants (including 

New Homes Bonus Grant and S31 Grants) and other external financing. It will also be 
supported during the year by greater use of internal sources of capital finance (including capital 
receipts reserve) because of the reduced level of external grant allocation. It is not anticipated 
currently that any capital borrowing will be required. 

 
7 Expected movement in interest rates 
 
7.1 The Council appointed Link Asset Services as treasury adviser to the Council and part of their 

service is to assist the Council in formulating a view on interest rates.  The following table gives 
Link’s latest available view of the expected future movement in interest rates, from quarter 
ending 30th September 2021 (their Qtr3 2020) onwards.  

   

 Qtr 3 
2021 

Qtr 4 
2021 

Qtr 1 
2022 

Qtr 2 
2022 

Qtr 3 
2022 

Qtr 4 
2022 

Qtr 1 
2023 

Qtr 2 
2023 

Qtr 3 
2023 

Qtr 4 
2023 

Base 
Rate 

0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 

5 yr 
PWLB 

1.40% 1.40% 1.50% 1.50% 1.60% 1.60% 1.60% 1.70% 1.70% 1.70% 

10 yr 
PWLB 

1.80% 1.80% 1.80% 1.90% 1.90% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.10% 2.10% 

25 yr 
PWLB 

2.20% 2.20% 2.20% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 2.40% 2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 

50 yr 
PWLB 

2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.10% 2.20% 2.20% 2.20% 2.20% 2.30% 2.30% 

 
7.2       In all the above forecasts there is a high level of uncertainty – due to the difficulties of 

forecasting the timing and amounts of ‘quantitative easing’ injected into the economy, and also 
the uncertainties around Brexit. 

 
7.3 The Council’s exposure to interest rate movements is largely neutralised currently as our 

borrowings are effectively at a fixed rate until a trigger point is reached, where the lender 
believes a better rate can be achieved elsewhere.  Interest rates would have to exceed 4% and 
possibly 5% before this is likely to happen. The above table indicates that this is unlikely to 
happen until beyond 2023 at the earliest. 

 
7.4       The Council has invested relatively small amounts of surplus cash on a short-term, temporary 

basis. The interest received from these investments is below the budgeted expectations for the 
six months to 30 September, mainly due to lower interest rates plus the impact of covid19 on 
surplus cash available for short term investment.  Our strategy continues to focus on the 
security of deposits and the liquidity of funds. 

 
7.5       The Council continues to invest surplus cash in the top rated financial institutions.  We continue 

to spread our money around a number of institutions to ensure that we are not potentially 
damaged by the unforeseen collapse of any one bank.  Deposits are also held with banks 
where we believe that the respective governments are likely to be able to guarantee deposits in 
the event of bank failure.  This strategy is continuing to yield an appropriate rate of return, 
though at a lower rate, as there is less risk attached to these deposits.  We also operate a policy 
of holding no more than £2m in any one bank (with the exception of the liquidity account held 
with Nat West Bank where the limit is £3m) to ensure that the risk is spread.   

 
 

Page 33



4 
 

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REASONS FOR REJECTION 
             

None applicable. 
 
9.        CONSULTATIONS 
 

None applicable in this instance. 
 
10.        IMPLICATIONS 
    

Financial (Including 
any future financial 
commitments for the 
Council) 

There are none arising directly from this report. 

Legal and human 
rights implications 

The Local Government Act 2003 (part 1) and associated 
regulations gave statutory recognition to the Prudential Code - 
therefore there is a statutory backing to the background and local 
purpose of the report.   
Treasury Management activities of local authorities are prescribed 
by statute – the source of powers is, in England & Wales, the 
2003 Act.    ‘Statutory Guidance’ on investment is given by the 
DCLG to local authorities.  

Assessment of risk There are inherent risks in capital finance and treasury 
management.  When appropriate the risks are identified and 
assessed as part of the various recommendations made on 
Prudential Capital Finance and in the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy. 

Equality and diversity 
implications 

There are no specific implications for customers’ equality and 
diversity arising directly from the recommendations in this report 

 
 

12. LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

 Background papers are the legislation referred to in section 10 above, and the report 
approved by Council on 25th February 2021. 

 Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003 and related regulations 

 The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (CIPFA 2017) 

 The Council’s Policy Statement on Treasury Management (Full Council February 2021) 

 The Councils Policy on Treasury Management Practices ( Full Council February 2021) 
 
 
13. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 

The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 
 
Contact Officer(s):     
   David Donlan, Head of Accountancy Services,  tel  380973 (internal 2973) 
   Amanda Martin, Principal Accountant (Capital),  tel  380668 (internal 2668) 
 
 

Page 34

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/documents/s14371/PIs%20Monitoring%20and%20TM%20Strategy%20-%20Update%20Report.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/26/contents
http://www.cipfa.org/Policy-and-Guidance/Publications/T/The-Prudential-Code-for-Capital-Finance-in-Local-Authorities-2011-Edition-Book
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/documents/s14371/PIs%20Monitoring%20and%20TM%20Strategy%20-%20Update%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/documents/s14371/PIs%20Monitoring%20and%20TM%20Strategy%20-%20Update%20Report.pdf


5 
 

 
                                                                                                                                          Appendix  1                                                          
 

TABLE 1     
      

 TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS     

 Prudential Indicators – actual and projected 

Original 
Indicator 
Estimate 
2021/22 

£'000 

Actual 6 
months 
£'000 

Projected 
Outturn 
2021/22 

£'000 Note 

           

 External Debt - Gross Borrowing 9,957 10,537 10,537 1 

 Authorised limit for external debt 35,000 35,000 35,000   

 Operational boundary for external debt 20,000 20,000 20,000   

 Maximum principal sum invested >364 days 3,000 0 0   

 Limit on fixed interest rate for net borrowing 100% 57% 100%  2  

 Limit on variable interest rate for net borrowing 100% 43% 43% 2 

           

 Maturity structure of borrowing limits (Upper Limit)        

  Under 12 months 43% 43% 43% 3 

  12 months - 24 months 0% 0% 0%   

  24 months - 5 years 0% 0% 0%   

  5 years - 10 years 0% 0% 0%   

  10 years and above 57% 57% 100%   

      

 
1. Includes the minor portion of borrowing from Charities (Internal Borrowing) - approximately £70k.  The 

debt is based on the capital value of mainly loans outstanding and does not include accrued interest or 
effective rate of interest adjustment (accounting adjustments to be made).  
No temporary borrowing is expected. 
The figure also reflects the liability for finance leases. Several leases have had their terms extended 
rather than be replaced due to the Coronavirus situation. 
Contract hire leases are also included in this figure to comply with IFRS requirements 

 
2. In 2016/17 Barclays notified Hyndburn that they will class £5.4m LOBO debt as fixed rate debt.  The 

interest rate has remained the same.  The balance of debt outstanding remains as LOBO’s which are 
classed as variable.  It is not expected that these loans will be “called” and repaid during 2021/22.  
However the projection reflects that this may be a possibility (depending on movements within the 
market) and replaced with fixed rate debt. 

 
3. Borrowings of £4.12m are via LOBO agreements.  As they have a call period of 6 month intervals they 

are classed as borrowing under 12 months.  £5.4m former Barclays LOBO’s are classed as long term 
debt.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



6 
 

                                                                                                                               
Appendix 1 cont’d 

 
 

TABLE 2     

 CAPITAL FINANCE PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS    
 
 

 Prudential Indicators - Latest Estimate 

Original 
Indicator 
Estimate 
2021/22 

£'000 

Latest 
Estimate 
2021/22 

£'000 Note  

 Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 8,866 9,446 1  

 Estimated Capital Expenditure   2,315 7,993 2  

 Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream  4% 4%   

      

      
 

1. The capital financing requirement (CFR) includes the finance lease position for the Council. CFR is a 
prescribed measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by an authority which has to be 
financed. 
The increase in CFR reflects the transfer of contract hire leases to comply with IFRS16 requirements. 
 

2. Approved capital programme, including slippage b/fwd and additional fully funded schemes. 
 
 

Page 36



 
Page 1 of 7 

REPORT TO: Cabinet 

DATE: 12 January 2022 

PORTFOLIO Cllr Joyce Plummer – Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Joe McIntyre,  

Deputy Chief Executive Resources 

TITLE OF REPORT: Capital Spend Report 2021/22 

EXEMPT 
REPORT:  

No  

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of 
publication: 

 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 The Report informs Cabinet of the progress of the 2021/22 Capital 

Programme. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 Cabinet notes the progress on capital expenditure to date. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 

3.1 Summary 

 

The Council approved its Capital Programme for 2021/22 at its meeting on 
the 25th February 2021. 
 
The total value of the spend authorised in the budget in February 2021 
was  £2.31m and this has been increased to £10.78m with carry forward 
projects from the previous year and new in-year authorisations.  The 
current predicted spend against Budget is £8.01m.  It is expected that a 
small positive variance against Budget will be achieved by the end of the 
year. 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8.



 
Page 2 of 7 

 

3.2 Detail 

 

The Council authorised a capital programme of £2.31m at its meeting on 
the 25th  February 2021 and the programme was subsequently increased 
to £10.78m upon the authorisation of  the carry forward of projects from 
the previous year and a variety of in–year authorisations using existing 
internal funds or new external funding.  The programme was determined in 
line with previous decisions to fund capital expenditure from existing 
resources and to avoid borrowing to finance capital expenditure. 
 
The significant elements of the programme are as follows,  
 

Programme Area Committed 
Expenditure 

  
Transitional Housing Programme 
 

£993,762 
 

Housing Improvement Programme  
(including Disabled Facility Grants) 
 

£2,305,907 
 

  
Other Projects £7,483,403 
Total £ 10,783,072 

 
 
Spend to date has been £2.4m which is equivalent to 22% of the overall 
programme budget.  There are 60 individual projects underway across the 
Council at this time.   
 
The predicted spend against these capital projects is just over £8m, with 
an estimate of £2.7m of likely spend slipped into the next financial year.  
Only 2 projects are indicating a negative variance at this moment in time 
and the overall additional costs from these 2 projects is expected to be 
less than £7,000.  Predicted savings on other projects outweigh the 
overspend here and overall the current expectation is that a surplus of 
around £25,000 will be generated from current activities. 
 
The detail of individual project budgets and expected costs to complete 
the projects is provided at Appendix 1. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 

Page 38



 
Page 3 of 7 

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Not applicable 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications 
(including mainstreaming) 
 

As outlined in this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

None 

Assessment of risk 
 

None 

Equality and diversity 
implications 
A Customer First Analysis should 
be completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached 
as an appendix to the report.  
 

None 

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 
List of Background Papers  

  
 

Council 25th February 2021 Capital Programme 2021/22 
 
 

8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local 

Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed 
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

Page 39

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2581&Ver=4


 
Page 4 of 7 

Capital Spend Report 
By Individual Project 2021/22 

 
 

 
 

Original Capital Programme Approved 
By Council 

New Authorised Budget Expected Outturn Variance 

Christmas Decoration Replacement  £                       20,000   £                     20,000  0  

Haworth Art Gallery Lighting & Wedding Venue  £                       46,450   £                     46,450  0  

HLC Mechanical and Electrical Plant Replacement 
Programme 

 £                     405,274   £                              -    405,274  

Disabled Facilities Grants  £                 2,124,552   £               2,124,552  0  

Scaitcliffe House Reception Redesign  £                     100,000   £                   100,000  0  

Tech Refresh  £                       25,000   £                     25,000  0  

Accrington Cemetery Welfare & Depot Facilities  £                     270,252   £                   270,252  0  

Annual Vehicle Replacement Programme  £                       55,000   £                     55,000  0  

Lowerfold Park Play Area  £                     124,559   £                   124,559  0  

Bullough Park Building Asset Rationalisation  £                       40,000   £                     40,000  0  

Lowerfold Park Building Asset Rationalisation  £                       35,000   £                     35,000  0  

Oakhill Park Service Building  £                       17,250   £                              -    17,250  

External Security Lighting  £                       15,000   £                              -    15,000  

Hyndburn Leisure 3G pitch Sinking Fund  £                       10,000   £                     10,000  0  

Lyndon Park Highway Improvement  £                       75,000   £                     75,000  0  

Appendix 1 

P
age 40



 
Page 5 of 7 

Accrington Market Hall - External Improvements 
Additional Funding 

 £                     234,853   £                              -    234,853  

Accrington Town Hall - External Improvements Additional 
Funding 

 £                     236,799   £                              -    236,799  

Mercer Hall Baths Forecourt Refurbishment Gt Harwood  £                       77,237   £                     79,557  -2,320  

Accrington Town Centre Paving  £                       20,000   £                     20,000  0  

ICT Replacement Microsoft Dynamics  £                     250,000   £                              -    250,000  

  £                                 -     0  

   0  

Sub Total  £                 4,182,226   £               3,025,370  1,156,856  

    

Additions to Capital Programme 
2021/22 

   

Projects Brought Forward from Previous Years    

Bolton Avenue Play Area  £                          1,459   £                       1,459  0  

Parks Wall Reconstruction Project  £                       28,750   £                     28,750  0  

Parks Footpaths - Infrastructure Reconstruction Works  £                       20,604   £                     24,493  -3,889  

Cutwood Park Paths  £                       25,500   £                              -    25,500  

Baxenden Woodland Improvements  £                       13,320   £                     13,320  0  

Peel Park Entrance Improvements  £                          1,662   £                       1,662  0  

HLC Re-roofing  £                                 -     £                              -    0  

HLC Replacement of Swimming Pool Pumps  £                                 -     £                              -    0  

Fire Assessment Building Alterations Elmfield Hall  £                       27,455   £                     27,455  0  

Financial System Software  £                     207,820   £                              -    207,820  

Fire Assessment Building Alterations Various Buildings  £                       28,252   £                     28,252  0  

Fire Assessment Building Alterations Acc Crematorium  £                       50,000   £                              -    50,000  

Nook Lane Acquisition Osw  £                       22,000   £                              -    22,000  

P
age 41



 
Page 6 of 7 

Internal Development Acc Market Hall  £                     482,876   £                     12,965  469,911  

Acc Market Hall Pavilions / Landscaping Peel St  £                     750,000   £                           635  749,365  

Cremators Acc Crematorium  £                          6,997   £                       6,997  0  

Planned Asset Improvement Programme - unallocated  £                     130,985   £                   130,985  0  

PAIP Electrical Works Various buildings  £                          6,970   £                       6,970  0  

PAIP Replacement Boilers  £                       11,522   £                     11,522  0  

PAIP Asbestos Removal  £                          3,333   £                       3,333  0  

PAIP Welfare & Storage Facilities Gt Harwood Cemetery  £                          6,725   £                       6,725  0  

PAIP HAG Re-roof  £                          8,500   £                       8,500  0  

PAIP Legionella Plumbing Works  £                       25,000   £                     25,000  0  

PAIP RDS & Pedestrian Doors  £                          4,070   £                       4,070  0  

PAIP Other  £                       17,054   £                     17,054  0  

PSDS Hyndburn Leisure Centre  £                 2,026,412   £               2,026,412  0  

PSDS Crematorium  £                          9,676   £                       9,676  0  

PSDS Scaitcliffe House  £                     337,675   £                   337,675  0  

PSDS Contingency  £                     213,217   £                   213,217  0  

Area Councils  £                       59,618   £                     59,618  0  

CCTV upgrade various buildings  £                       35,000   £                              -    35,000  

HLC Car Park Lighting  £                       50,000   £                              -    50,000  

Computer Aided Facilities Management System  £                       50,000   £                     50,000  0  

Willows Land Depot  £                       40,000   £                     40,000  0  

Wilson Playing Fields Storage & Welfare Facilities  £                       10,000   £                     10,000  0  

Transitional Housing Programme  £                       38,882   £                     38,882  0  

Phoenix 1D  £                     954,880   £                   954,880  0  

Lower Woodnook Housing Renewal Scheme  £                     100,000   £                   100,000  0  

DFG Affordable Warmth Grant  £                       31,355   £                     31,355  0  

DFG Emergency Works Grant  £                       50,000   £                     50,000  0  

P
age 42



 
Page 7 of 7 

Pump Track Milnshaw Park  £                       75,000   £                     75,000  0  

Bolton Avenue MUGA  £                       95,000   £                     95,000  0  

HLC Roof Works & Electric Sub Station  £                     337,034   £                   337,034  0  

Taxi Cabin CVMU  £                          7,825   £                       6,355  1,470  

Refuse Collection Vehicle  £                     198,418   £                   189,418  9,000  

  £                                 -      

    

  £                 6,600,846   £               4,984,669  1,616,177  

    

Total  £               10,783,072   £               8,010,039  2,773,033  

 
Over £2.7m of the predicted variance this year is attributable to projects that have been delayed for a variety of 
reasons and will not complete until the 2022/23 financial year.  The actual predicted positive variance across all 
projects currently is just over £26,000. 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

Agenda Item 10.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Cabinet
	Minutes

	4. Urgent Decisions Taken
	Huncoat Garden Village - Main Report

	6. Council Tax Base - 2022-2023
	7. Prudential Indicators Monitoring and Treasury Management Strategy Update
	8. Capital Spend Report 2021/22
	10. Urgent Decisions Taken
	Planning Applications Software - Main Report


